


















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 





 
Best,
Jane
 
Jane Ritt
Thomas Jefferson Partnership Fund
STEM Outreach and Administrative Coordinator
Mobile: 
Office: 703-750-8317
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B 



From: Love, Cathie <
Sent: Monday, August 14, 2017 12:26 PM EDT
To: Grosicki, Gary J. 
Subject: RE: Two volunteer HR8s
My pleasure
 
From: Grosicki, Gary J. 
Sent: Monday, August 14, 2017 12:26 PM
To: Love, Cathie >
Subject: RE: Two volunteer HR8s
 
Thanks Cathie
 
From: Love, Cathie 
Sent: Monday, August 14, 2017 10:49 AM
To: St John, Pamela; Collins, Brenda L.
Cc: Bonitatibus, Ann N; Grosicki, Gary J.
Subject: Two volunteer HR8s
 
These HR8s are for the Partnership Fund Board members.
 
Natalie Givans is a renewal.  She was, and may still be a volunteer for JLC, but is now the  PF Board Chair.
 
Miguel Browne is the PF Board Vice Chair.
 
 
Cathie Love
Admin. Asst. to Dr. Ann N. Bonitatibus, Principal
Thomas Jefferson High School for
Science and Technology
6560 Braddock Rd., Alexandria, VA 22312

; fax 703-750-5036

www.tjhsst.edu
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the meeting tomorrow, I’d be happy to weigh in on anything you and Tinell want to punt to me. (Also before is fine
too, whenever you need something, don’t hesitate).
 
If you or anyone else has any issues or concerns with any of this, I am happy to discuss and change things up. I
haven’t had the benefit of many conversations with Evan, Tinell, Lee Ann, or you to see if any of this is outrageous.
To be clear, the PF is not trying to disrupt the school or inconvenience LDs, we’re just trying our best to maximize
revenue for the school based on our campaign needs and current group of interested donors and parties. I did my
best to structure the most beneficial deal that was feasible, given the interest in the “marketplace” and the situation
with FCPS. FCPS has been briefed, and Mark Skolnik and I have had multiple meetings with school board members
and county reps (Chair Karen Bulova) to keep everybody in the loop and to ensure there is widespread awareness
and support.
 
Best,
Tia
 
Aristia Kinis
Thomas Jefferson High School for Science and Technology
Partnership Fund // The Campaign for TJ
703-750-8317 (office)

  (mobile)
http://tjpartnershipfund.org/
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From: Grosicki, Gary J. >
Sent: Friday, November 17, 2017 5:54 PM EST
To: Bonitatibus, Ann N < >
Subject: Fw: STEM seminar - Beijing visitors
Hi Ann:

Please see below regarding a request for a “ one of” visit by a large delegation.

I will put this on the Ateam agenda, but if you would prefer to discuss at a different time just let me know.

Thanks 

Gary

Best Regards//

Gary Grosicki
_______________________
Assistant Principal
Science and Technology Division
Class of 2019
Thomas Jefferson High School for Science and Technology

From: Zabel, Sally
Sent: Friday, November 17, 2017 2:40:16 PM
To: Grosicki, Gary J.
Cc: Kinis, Aristia
Subject: RE: STEM seminar - Beijing visitors
 
Hey Gary,
 
No problem at all.
 
Please let me know what the A-team says…and if they have further questions.
 

1.       This is a group of 25 high-level STEM teachers from Beijing.  The Beijing district knows that we work with Tsinghua
University High School (also in Beijing) on visits and has asked if we could accommodate this group of teachers as a one-off. 
(This is not associated with or asked through our connections with TUHS – they just know we host this sort of thing because
of that.)  They are spending roughly 2 weeks in DC in late NOV and early DEC to visit different area schools and learn
different STEM practices that they can employ.

2.      They have said that they would make a donation to the TJPF for this seminar and time at TJ. 
3.      Benefits for this are:

a.      The monetary donation (mentioned above)
b.     Allows the TJPF to position itself as a host for seminars at TJ – meaning that we don’t have to only have long-multi

year contracts with international partners for donations to come in.  We  have the ability to work with smaller groups
on a much smaller scale partnership (a few hours).

c.      This also allows us to keep a good rapport with our educator and STEM colleagues in TX (the guy coordinating is the
COO and CFO for Space Services Holding – Harvin Moore)

 
 
From: Grosicki, Gary J. 
Sent: Friday, November 17, 2017 10:39 AM
To: Zabel, Sally >
Subject: RE: STEM seminar - Beijing visitors
 
Hi Sally,
 
I will have to run it by the A team on Monday.  Please let me know the following:
 

1.      Who are they and who do they represent?
2.      Are they current or potential benefactors to the TJPF?
3.      What are the benefits to TJ and TJPF that may accrue from this visit moving forward?

 
Thank you.

Gary
 
From: Zabel, Sally
Sent: Friday, November 17, 2017 10:33 AM
To: Grosicki, Gary J.



Subject: STEM seminar - Beijing visitors
 
Hi Gary,
 
We have a group of 25 STEM educators from Beijing who are visiting the USA and would like to visit TJ during Nov 27-Dec 7.  They
would like to have a 2(ish) hour long seminar about how TJ teaches STEM education (I know its general, but they are looking for
ways to improve their STEM education).  I thought this was something that Mark or a Vice Principal could possibly lead, depending
on his/her schedule.
 
I wanted to work with you first on this as for timing of this.  Are there dates that this wouldn’t work?  Are there dates that this is
better?  Obviously, I would need to work with the teacher or Vice Principal who would lead this.  But, I know TJ has weeks where its
not good for visitors to come due to testing, etc.
 
Please let me know your thoughts.  We would, of course, be willing to pay the teacher who leads the seminar for their time and effort
they put into the planning and execution.
 
 
Sally Zabel
Thomas Jefferson High School for Science and Technology
Partnership Fund // The Campaign for TJ
Manager, Outreach and Partnerships
703-750-8316 (office)

(mobile)
tjpartnershipfund.org
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Sally Zabel
TJ Partnership Fund // Campaign for TJ
Thomas Jefferson High School for Science & Technology
703-750-8316 (office)

 (mobile)
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Introduction
 
Welcome to the Thomas Jefferson High School for Science and Technology Neuroscience Research
Laboratory! Your semester working in the lab is going to be a dynamic and interactive learning
experience that confers a strong background in the fundamentals of basic neuroscience,
experimental design, and the personal dispositions of scientists.

Neuroscience, as a field, is focused on understanding the brain, central nervous system, and how
these amazingly complex systems develop. Neuroscientists seek to understand the impact of the
brain on behavior and cognitive functions, as well as the implications and causes of neurological,
psychiatric, and neurodevelopment disorders. In its early days Neuroscience was considered a sub-­‐
discipline of Biology, however as the field has matured, it has become its own stand-­‐alone
interdisciplinary science that combines other disciplines such as mathematics, linguistics,
engineering, computer science, chemistry, physics, and psychology. It is into these subjects in
which you are about to embark.

The goal of all of the senior research labs at TJHSST is to provide students with an opportunity to
experience “real” science. To do this you will have to continue to work towards a mastery of the
core knowledge base and intellectual foundations of Neuroscience including its basic principles and
research approaches. You will be asked to develop your own research project, manage its progress,
and develop a level of competence in the operation, interpretation, and evaluation of research. You
will have to become a flexible, adaptive thinker and make use of the critical thinking skills you have
developed over time. You will learn that the scientific endeavor does not end with the experiment,
and that scientific discoveries that aren’t communicated, were never done. Consequently, you will
be asked to develop the professional communication and technology skills of a researcher. It is also
an expected outcome of your experience in the laboratory that through the development of all of
these skills and dispositions you will gain personal insight into a career choice, be it in the field of
Neuroscience, or in the wider areas of Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics.

Your time in the TJHSST Neuroscience Lab should be exciting, difficult, rewarding, and fun. I look
forward to working and growing with you this year.

Mark S. Hannum
Director, Neuroscience Research Laboratory
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Daily Procedures and Expectations

Classroom Rules
 

• Lab Safety is always the first priority;
• Disrespectful behavior is not allowed. Respect yourself and others;
• Heed the teacher, not the clock – do not leave the lab at the end of the day without

checking with me first;
• Food is never allowed in the research portion of the lab. Food must be kept in the

classroom section;
• Adhere to 8th period attendance policy.

Attendance
 
Regular attendance is required for success in any research endeavor. Because of the nature of the
schedule in the Neuroscience lab it will be impossible for you to finish your project if you miss too
many workdays. This includes 8th Periods. It is my expectation that you will be working in the lab
most 8th periods. If you need to speak to another teacher or you would like to participate in another
activity you must sign up for that activity in the 8th period system. If you are not in the lab, I will
mark you absent and you will be subject to the normal school consequences.

Cleaning Up Supplies/Equipment
 
Each person is responsible for his or her own mess. Students will not be allowed to leave the room
until all materials are put away. A short (and not comprehensive) end of class checklist may
include:

• Turning off all electrical equipment such as amplifiers;
• Cleaning and putting away all glassware;
• Returning all chemicals to the storage cabinet;
• Putting all laptops back into cart and locking cart;
• Cleaning all forceps, scissors, and scalpels;
• Turn off compressed air supplies at the tank;
• Putting all chairs on tables.

General Weekly Schedule
 
Anchor Days

• Lab meeting time. Each group will share what they accomplished in the preceding week,
and any difficulties they may have had during that time. They will present some solutions
to these problems as well as what they are planning to do during the upcoming week;

• General lab cleaning;
• Proactive animal care;
• Making of solutions and equipment maintenance;
• Updating lab notebook if necessary.

Red/Blue Days
• Actively conducting experimentation and/or analysis.
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• When using compressed air use only approved nozzles and never direct the air towards any
person;

• Minimize the number of extension cords in use, and make sure that all extension cords that
extend across isle ways are taped securely to the floor;

• When using power strips, keep them away from water tanks, or mounted make sure they
are firmly attached to the walls. Only use power strips that have an internal fuse or surge
protector.

• Never modify, attach, or otherwise change any high voltage equipment.

Chemical Safety
• Treat every chemical as if it were hazardous;
• Make sure all chemicals are clearly and currently labeled with the substance name,

concentration, date, and name of individual responsible for the substance;
• Never return chemicals to reagent bottles;
• Use volatile and flammable compounds only in a fume hood. Procedures that produce

aerosols should be performed in a hood to prevent inhalation of hazardous materials;
• Never allow a solvent to come in contact with your skin. Always use gloves.
• Never smell a solvent!! Read the label;
• Dispose of waste and broken glassware in proper containers;
• Check glassware for cracks and chips each time you use it;
• Never pipette by mouth;
• Clean up spills immediately.

Biological Safety
• Dispose of all “sharps” in the proper containers;
• If you prick yourself with a syringe, or cut yourself with a cutting instrument notify the lab

director immediately;
• Never use dull or damaged cutting instruments;
• Follow all established protocols for the care and handling of laboratory animals;
• Dispose of all biological waste including animal carcasses in a zip lock bag and place it in the

appropriate freezer bin.

Visitors in the Neuroscience Lab
 
It is very common in all of the senior tech labs to periodically have visitors who are touring the
building. Whomever is working nearest the door should great them, introduce yourself, and then
ask the visitor to introduce themselves. You can then direct them to me. Aside from being good
hosts to all visitors it is important that we help all visitors to the lab, including other TJ students,
understand and follow all of the safety procedures outlined in the preceding sections.
 

Substitute Teachers

On days that the lab director is out of the building a substitute teacher will oversee the lab. It is
expected that normal lab activities would continue without interruption on these days. Any
accidents or emergencies should be reported to the substitute as soon as they occur.
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Appendix
 
The following pages contain guidelines for the deliverables for the Neuroscience tech lab. Please
refer to these pages before any deliverables are due to make sure that you meet all the expectations
of the assignment.

The most current versions of these guidelines can be found in the shared Dropbox.
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• Full details for all experimental organisms. Who provided aplysia, leeches, etc. give source,
delivery conditions, and catalog numbers.

• Record reagent details including vendor name, catalog numbers, website, chemical
structure, purity grade, date of mixing/production, expiration date and type of water (di-­‐
ionized, distilled, tap, artificially sea water).

• Record names of people you are working with for data collection, statistical advice and all
notes from phone conversations and emails.

• Make quick drawings of experiment set-­‐ups.
• Attach photographs that document key experimental details.
• Names of all computer programs, and organizational system for computerized data and

reports.
• Make daily entries, even if mundane.
• If using Excel (or similar program) to collect data, you should print out data tables and paste

them into your notebook. Make sure to glue these in firmly.
• Detail all mistakes, problems with procedures, and lapses in data collection.
• At the conclusion of your time in the lab you should write out a directory of all computer

files that you used.

References

• Purrington, Colin.Maintaining a Laboratory Notebook. Retrieved Fri. 9 Aug. 2013
http://colinpurrington.com/tips/academic/labnotebooks

• Couch, Brett. A Guide to Keeping a Biology Lab Notebook. Retrieved Fri. 9 Aug. 2013
http://blog.lib.umn.edu/jveldof/calculator/BiologyLaboratoryNotebooks.pdf

• Office of Technology Commercialization, University of Minnesota.
Maintaining Laboratory Notebooks. Retrieved Fri. 9 Aug. 2013
http://www.research.umn.edu/techcomm/documents/LabNotes.pdf
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Final Poster Guideline

This guide provides an overview of both the structure and content of your final poster. This poster
will remain in the lab for years and will serve as a public embodiment of your work for future
neuroscience lab students.

How do you compress all of your work from that past twenty weeks into one, small poster? A good
scientific poster is just an illustrated abstract. It tells a short story that highlights a few major
points and tries to arouse the reader to ask questions. It should be composed of two types of
information:

1) Simple, effective displays of data;
2) Small blocks of supporting text.

Points for each of the sections below will be scored according to the flowing general scheme:

Quality of Work Percent Earned Description
Excellent 100 Superior quality of work
Above Average 85 Lacking a few major items, ideas, etc.
Below Average 75 Insufficient work, explanation
Poor 65 Appears as though minimum effort was put forth
Missing 0 Skipped a section entirely

Formatting/Submission

Item Description Points Possible
Submission • Poster is submitted on time

• Uploaded to shared Dropbox 20

Proper Format • Font Sizes:
Title 85 pt.
Author 56 pt.
Sub-­‐Headings 36 pt.
Body Text 24 pt.
Captions 18 pt.

• Dark type on light background
• 2 – 3 colors
• Correct use of figures/pictures/graphs
• Images have scale bars
• Clear flow of information

20







 

 21 

Free Online Poster Templates

• http://colinpurrington.com/tips/academic/posterdesign#templates
• http://www.posterpresentations.com/html/free_poster_templates.html
• http://www.makesigns.com/SciPosters_Templates.aspx

Other Online Poster Help

• http://www.cns.cornell.edu/documents/ScientificPosters.pdf
• http://www.flickr.com/groups/pimpmyposter/
• http://betterposters.blogspot.com/
• http://www.colorschemer.com/online.html
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Reference Guide
 
Type of Reference Example
Journal article • Hamill OP, Marty A, Neher E, Sakmann B, Sigworth F (1981) Improved

patch-­‐clamp techniques for high-­‐resolution current recordings from cells
and cell free membrane patches. Pflugers Arch 391:85-­‐100.

• Hodgkin AL, Huxley AF (1952a) The components of membrane
conductance in the giant axon of Loligo. J Physiol (Lond) 116:473-­‐496.

• Hodgkin AL, Huxley AF (1952b) The dual effect of membrane potential
on sodium conductance in the giant axon of Loligo. J Physiol (Lond)
116:497-­‐506.

Book • Hille B (1984) Ionic channels of excitable membranes. Sunderland, MA:
Sinauer.

Chapter in Book • Stent GS (1981) Strength and weakness of the genetic approach to the
development of the nervous system. In: Studies in developmental
neurobiology: essays in honor of Viktor Hamburger (Cowan WM, ed),
pp288-­‐321. New York: Oxford UP.
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From: Zabel, Sally >
Sent: Tuesday, January 10, 2017 11:48 AM EST
To: Grosicki, Gary J. 
Subject: RE: help with schedule for Tsinghua
Attachment(s): "TUHS Feb 2017 Draft Agenda.docx"
Hi Gary,
 
This was exactly what I needed.  Thank you!
 
I have drafted a schedule (attached) and would like to review it with you.  I have NOT run this by teachers/staff
members schedules when their names are highlighted (teachers are free during the time, but I haven’t spoken to
them about speaking on a topic or to the group; I am not sure of Assistant Principal’s schedules at all, so all are
highlighted).
 
Before starting to line up people to speak and mark their calendars, I wanted to run this by you (and possibly Mark
too) and make sure it makes sense from your perspective with what their goals are as well as not trying to
overwhelm them too much/giving them enough knowledge of TJ that nothing is too confusing.  Please let me know
your edits – I’ll be at TJ tomorrow (WED) and can meet in person if easier.
 
Below are the goals that they sent me for their time here.  The educators they are sending have experiences in the
following of their labs:  Chemistry, Robotics, Physics, Energy Systems, Lego Lab.
 
 
The objects and requests for our teachers' visiting this time are as following: 
 
1. How to evaluate the work of the lab teachers?
2. What is the bonus system in labs for teachers who made great contribution?
3. Visit and observe Microelectronics lab and Mobile and Web Application Development Lab.
4. Communication with Director of Chemistry lab:

a) Possible project development based on current experimental instruments in Tsinghua University High School.
b) Curriculum design
c) Integration of chemistry-related theory courses and experimental skills
d) Cross-discipline project design (Chemistry and other labs)

5. Communication with Directors of Energy System and Robotic & Automation
a) Discuss the possible development of the current projects in the two labs.
b) Request TJ directors to provide suggestions about the current curriculum design in the two labs.
c) Introduce the current evaluation system in the two labs in Tsinghua. Listen to the TJ directors’ suggestions about how

to evaluate students’ achievement and abilities detailedly.
 
 
From: Grosicki, Gary J. 
Sent: Monday, January 09, 2017 6:41 PM
To: Zabel, Sally
Subject: RE: help with schedule for Tsinghua
 
Hi Sally,
 
I think this one document has what you need.  Let me know if not.

Cheers
 
From: Zabel, Sally 
Sent: Monday, January 09, 2017 2:44 PM
To: Grosicki, Gary J. >
Subject: RE: help wi ua
 
Thank you so much; I am working remotely today, but will be in tomorrow.
 
You can also just put copies in my mailbox.
 
From: Grosicki, Gary J. 
Sent: Monday, January 09, 2017 2:44 PM
To: Zabel, Sally
Subject: RE: help with schedule for Tsinghua
 
Yes.  Ill get you copies of this stuff.
 
Thanks
 
GJG
 



From: Zabel, Sally 
Sent: Monday, Janua
To: Grosicki, Gary J. >
Subject: help with s
 
Hi Gary,
 
I am working on the schedule for the Tsinghua visit and hope you can help with some holes.
 
I found on the Intranet where I can find out what teacher is in what classroom during which period; is there a spot I
can find out what class is being taught during what period?  And, with that, can I find what teacher teaches what
class?
 
If this is easier to show me in person, just let me know.  I really only need the Sci/Tech
teachers/classrooms/schedules….not the entire school
 
I kept coming up with questions like the ones below, but think that the above would solve for all:
 
Who are the IBET Engineering teachers this year – last year it was LaFever (who I know is no longer here), Lewis and
Seyler.
 
Who teachers Biology 9 – last  year it was Holman, James, and Larson.  Wasn’t sure if James still did it…
 
 
 
----------------------------------------------------------------------
Sally Zabel
Thomas Jefferson High School for Science and Technology
Manager, Outreach and Partnerships
Partnership Fund // The Campaign for TJ
703-750-8316 (office)

tjpartnershipfund.org
 



   

  

   

    

   

    

   

  

  

   

 

     

 

     

    

   

 

    

      

AGENDA
Tsinghua University High School

February 13-17, 2017

Monday, February 13, 2017

10am - 10:15am Introductions, Agenda Overview, Logistics (Sally)

10:15 – 11:00am Overview of TJ Organization, operation and management, admin framework, 
division leadership, etc (Gary)

11am - 12:00   Tour of TJHSST Campus (Jefferson Society guide)

12pm – 1:00pm: Lunch (provided by PF; PCR)

1pm – 2:00pm: Overview of Teacher Evaluation (Pam Gravitte)

2pm – 3:00pm: TJ’s Mission, Vision, and Philosophy (Evan Glazer or Gary or Pam)

3pm – 4:00pm: Overview of TJ Admissions (Jeremy Shugart, Director of Admissions)

5pm – 7:30pm: Welcome Dinner (Asian Bistro; Old Town Alexandria)

Tuesday, February 14, 2017

9am – 9:15am Morning Tea/Breakfast…  

9:15 - 10:15am Overview of TJ Diploma requirements, IBET, Core/Elective Sciences, and 
Research labs (Mark Hannum)

10:15am – 10:30am Break

TJ IBET Observations

10:30am – 11:15am Engineering/Tech 9 (Geiger, Piccione, Seyler, rooms 33, 34, 42)

11:15am - 11:30am  Break

11:30am - 12:00pm Biology 9 (Holman, Rosenblum, Larson, rooms 22, 29, 45)

12pm – 1:00pm: Lunch (provided by PF; PCR)

1pm – 2:15pm Mobile and Web Design Research Lab Observations (Kosek, room 202)

Astronomy Research Lab Observations (Henning, 248)

2:15pm – 2:30pm  Break

2:30pm – 3:15pm: Digital Electronics (Micro Electronics Lab) (Bell, 208)

3:15pm – 4:00pm:  Robotics Micro Systems (Dela Cuesta, 207)



  

    

 

    

   

    

   

   

  

    

 

   

    

   

 

  

AGENDA
Tsinghua University High School

February 13-17, 2017

Wednesday, February 15, 2017

9am – 9:15am Morning Tea/Breakfast…  

9:30am – 10:15 Chemistry 1 and AP Chemistry (Larson, Chhabra, Kauffman, Taylor, 51, 52, 
53, 54)

10:15am – 10:30am Break 

10:30am – 11:15 Geosystems (Culbertson, Cullen, Woodwell, 249, 250, 251)

11:15am – 12pm  AP Physics (Dell, 235)

 Physics 1 (Forbes, Scholla, 236, 237)

12pm – 1:00pm: Lunch (provided by PF; PCR)

1pm – 2:15pm: Energy Systems Research Lab Observations (Piccione, 9)

Neuro Research Lab Observations (Hannum, 5)

2:30pm – 4:00pm:  Curriculum Design and student evaluation in labs (Mark Hannum?)

Thursday, February 16, 2017

9am – 9:15am Morning Tea/Breakfast…  

9:15am – 10:15am Audio Electronics (MicroElectronics Lab) (Bell; 208) 

Chemistry Research Lab observations (Kennedy, 3)

10:15am – 10:25am Break

10:25am – 12:00 Robotics Research Lab observations (Dela Cuesta, 207)

Mobile and Web Design Research Lab observations (Kosek, 202)

12pm – 1:00pm: Lunch (provided by PF; PCR)

1:00pm – 2:15 Engineering Design Research observations (Lewis, 206)

Oceanography Research Lab observations (Wu, 2)

2:15pm – 2:25 Break

2:30 – 3:30pm *Possible:  They have a lot of questions for Kennedy.  Possible time for him to 
come in and speak with them?  Hannum is also free to be here too if needed.

5pm – 7:30pm: Farewell Dinner (Grace’s Mandarin; National Harbor)



  

    

 

   

   

    

   

  

  

 

AGENDA
Tsinghua University High School

February 13-17, 2017

Friday, February 17, 2017

9am – 9:15am Morning Tea/Breakfast…  

9:15am – 10:15 Observe Quantum Physics Optics Research Lab (Luo, 7) 

Prototyping Research Lab (Behling, 8)

10:15am – 10:25 Break

10:25am – 11:15 Observe Bio Tech Research Lab (Burnett, 201) 

Observe Energy Systems 1 (Piccione, 9)

11:15am - 12:00 Senior Lab Application Process (Gary?)

12pm – 1:00pm: Lunch (provided by PF; PCR)

1pm – 1:30pm Observe Computer Systems Lab Research (Torbert, 200)

1:30 – 2:15pm Mentorship Presentation (Fred Lampazzi)

2:15pm – 3:00pm Student Research Presentations

(gather student presenters from LD’s)

3pm – 4 Final Q & A with Gary/Sally



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit O 



























 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit P 



From: Scholla, Stephen < >
Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2019 2:15 PM EDT
To: TJHSST SciTech Physics 
Subject: Fwd: Physics/AP Physics write up - TJPF
Attachment(s): "TJ Chem for PF B Kennedy.pdf","ATT00001.htm"
Team Leaders,
Here’s a request that I’m forwarding on to you. 
Steve

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Zabel, Sally" >
Date: June 11, 2019 at 2:10:27 PM EDT
To: "Scholla, Stephen" >
Subject: Physics/AP Physics write up - TJPF

Hi Steve,
 
I hope you are doing well.
 
I have a special request for you.  Our current International Partners, Shirble, have specifically asked to know more about
some of our courses as they are going to work on building some of their own, similar to ours.
 
They would like to know more about the curriculum design/pace of the year, equipment/books/materials needed, class
layout, and possible student projects/paper topics for their own version of the classes.
 
We have had Brian Kennedy write up information like this about his lab for the International Partners in the past.  I have
attached it here as an example for you.  Don’t feel like you have to follow his example exactly, but it gives you a good
example of what we are looking for.
 
If you can write up a similar information packet for your Physics/AP Physics class, the TJPF would like to pay you at a
rate of Pay Band 11 for up to 15 hours total of work.  We would ask that the project be done over the summer, and given
back to us by August 15.
 
Please let me know your thoughts and if this is possible.
 
Thanks,
Sally
 
 
 
Sally Zabel
Thomas Jefferson High School for Science and Technology
Partnership Fund // The Campaign for TJ
Manager, Outreach and Partnerships
703-750-8316 (office)

tjpartnershipfund.org
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit Q 



From: Love, Cathie 
Sent: Tuesday, January 02, 2018 1:36 PM EST
To: Bonitatibus, Ann N >
Subject: A Team notes
Attachment(s): "A Team notes 1-2-2018.doc"
 
 
 
Cathie Love
Admin. Asst. to Dr. Ann N. Bonitatibus, Principal
Thomas Jefferson High School for
Science and Technology
6560 Braddock Rd., Alexandria, VA 22312

www.tjhsst.edu
 



 A Team
1/2/2018

Weekly Schedules
Team reviewed out of office obligations. School Board visitor on Thursday. 
BK out Fri afternoon; Take Tues finance interviews OFF calendar. Keep 
Friday block.

 L Team Agenda
• Master schedule docs – review, educate all staff about master 

schedule building process
• Reminder: SIIP midyear update due 1/18
• Strategic Planning day on 1/29 (within SIIP goals); MH finalizing 

survey/plans/distribution, etc.

J Day still not decided upon; need strong regs about what can be done and 
where—communicate safety issues for students’ planning. Cooking is 
against regulations even outside.

Master schedule routines
• Reviewed AB/BK building a master schedule working document.
• Discussed initial tallies for courses/governors school standards to be 

followed.
• Courses v. Teachers based on enrollment, not on favorite teachers. 

No justification needs to be given; our obligation is to meet needs of 
building/students.

• Placement testing—timeline to be done; why do we do it? Not doing 
placement tests (CS, math, physics, world language)?  To be 
discussed with DMs at L Team on a future date.

Focus Groups
AB hasn’t melded everything yet. Going to meet with support staff soon.  
AB shared a draft power point.  Core mission—some tension and 
confusion. This process can refute and validate issues.  Will share with 
staff by the end of January; will affect the planning process.  Some of these 
things might influence our current goals.



Diploma Requirement (BK) 
• State just changed standards of education; County in process of 

interpreting what it means; will go in effect next year—major changes 
were approved:  sequential elective requirement (what does that 
mean?), incoming freshmen will be required to have a sequential set 
of electives in their schedule and world language will not count.  
Graduation requirements changing once this standard is explained. 

• Numbers of credits is not changing, social studies going from 4 to 3. 
District might be changing.  State approved some changes. A lot of 
our electives may not appear to be sequential; may need to explain it. 

• Changes could affect staffing and starts with incoming freshmen next 
year.  Staffing might not play out until that class is in their third year.

• There are VA state requirements and Local requirements (hopefully 
will include TJ). May need to request exceptions.

• Admissions regs are being overhauled.

Master Schedule Priorities (BK)
Big ticket items to be discussed.

Jan 22 Homeroom (BK)
Homeroom for course planning, mental wellness screening, etc.

Curriculum Night (BK)
DMs want to discuss today with A Team at lunch/JLC today: focus on 
curriculum, empower divisions to educate parents about courses, 
expectations. Building the schedule/timing/food. Gymnastics tournament 
the same night.  Parking problem? Strong turnout but not everyone 
showing up at once.  Student Services working on podcast to develop 
course guides, updating websites. Depts. do 10-15 min. presentation on 
the hour/half hour. Still working on plan/logistics.

AP/IB Opt Out forms (BK)
• 1396 students taking APs exams. Letters went out before break to 

every student currently enrolled in an AP class; op out current class, 
let us know now.  No one has to take their AP exam.  



• Additional weight still applies whether they take the test or not. If you 
don’t take the exam during the year you are in the course and take it 
the next year, the student has to pay for it. My School Funds does the 
billing.

Ameson/TJPF (GG)
PF has contract with Ameson that they will pay $1M in exchange for help in 
getting their schools up and running in China.  Called the Thomas Schools.   
Curriculum has already been done; now want to talk about building 
schools.   An hour to meet with them? On 1/23 or 24. GG meeting with 
Sally Z.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit R 



From: Grosicki, Gary J.
Sent: Friday, February 02, 2018 5:03 PM EST
To: Bonitatibus, Ann N < >
Subject: FW: TUHS next week - future partnership
FYI
 
From: Zabel, Sally 
Sent: Friday, February 02, 2018 11:57 AM
To: Grosicki, Gary J. ; Hannum, Mark >; Stickler, Shawn >;
James, Jennifer
Subject: TUHS next week - future partnership
 
Hi everyone,
 
This is the last year of our current contract with TUHS.  I know they have been asking you all when you are in China about the future
of the partnership – and I assume they will continue to bring it up while they are here next week.
 
I don’t want any of you to feel odd getting this question.
 
A quick response for you is:  “I know Sally and Tia are eager to speak with you further about the future of the partnerships.  I have
heard they have ideas about workshops that could be hosted to help you all with in-depth topics.”
 
To note:  The contract is between the TJPF and Tsinghua University High School – not TJ itself.  The school does not sign the
contract; only the TJPF does, so please – don’t promise them anything.  Just direct them to me and Tia Kinis for any “future of the
partnership” questions.
 
Thanks!
 
 
Sally Zabel
Thomas Jefferson High School for Science and Technology
Partnership Fund // The Campaign for TJ
Manager, Outreach and Partnerships

tjpartnershipfund.org
 




